

ORDINANCE NO. 3501-19

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 126, SECTIONS 1 THROUGH 9, 9.1, 11, 14, 22, 29, 31, 37, 39, 41, 50, 56, 58, 62, 68, 69, 70, 71 AND 72 OF THE CODE OF THE REVISED GENERAL ORDINANCES OF THE BOROUGH OF RUTHERFORD COUNTY OF BERGEN AND STATE OF NEW JERSEY

BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the Borough of Rutherford, County of Bergen and State of New Jersey that Chapter 126, Sections 1 through 9, 9.1, 11, 14, 22, 29, 31, 37, 39, 41, 50, 56, 58, 62, 68, 69, 70, 71 and 72 of the Code of the Borough of Rutherford shall be amended and that those portions of the Ordinances set forth below are hereby amended as follows and that those portions of the Ordinances not set forth below shall remain unchanged:

§ 126 – 1 Parking prohibited in certain areas

- A. No person or persons, firm or corporation shall park any automobile, bus, truck or other vehicle in the following designated areas of the following streets:

~~(1) West side of Erie Avenue commencing at the intersection of the same with Park Avenue and running northerly a distance of 40 feet.~~

West side of Milton Court commencing at the intersection with Elliot Place and running northerly a distance of 168 feet

~~(2) West side of Erie Avenue between Orient Way and Feronia Way.~~

West side of Kip Avenue commencing at a point 245 feet southerly from the intersection with Ames Avenue and running southerly a distance of 45 feet.

~~(4) Southwest side of Donaldson Avenue beginning at the intersection of the same with Park Avenue and running westerly a distance of 185 feet.~~ **210 feet.**

~~(6) Northeast side of Union Avenue between Ayer Place and Carmita Avenue.~~

North side of West Passaic Avenue beginning at the northwest corner of Wood Street and West Passaic Avenue and running in a westerly direction for a distance of 45 feet.

~~(7) Southwest side of Union Avenue between Chestnut Street and Carmita Avenue.~~

North side of West Passaic Avenue beginning at the northeast corner of Wood Street and West Passaic Avenue and running in an easterly direction for a distance of 45 feet.

~~(8) Southeast side of Sylvan Street between Spring Dell and Glen Road.~~

Along the easterly terminus of East Passaic Avenue.

~~(9) Northeast side of Union Avenue beginning at the intersection of the same with the southeast side of Wells Place and running southeasterly a distance of 90 feet.~~

Along the north side of Pierrepont Avenue beginning at a point distant 335 feet northwesterly from the intersection of the same with the northwest side of Ridge Road to a point 12 feet northwesterly therefrom.

~~(10) Southwest side of Union Avenue between Springfield Avenue and Jackson Avenue.~~

West side of Kip Avenue commencing at a point 245 feet southerly from the intersection with Ames Avenue and running southerly a distance of 45 feet.

~~(12) Northeast side of Ames Avenue beginning at a point 235~~ **490** feet southeast of the intersection of the same with the southeast side of Chestnut Street and running southeasterly a distance of ~~92~~ **50** feet.

~~(13) Southeast side of Ames Avenue beginning at the intersection of the same with the southeast side of Kip Avenue and running southeasterly a distance of 110~~ **178 feet, except emergency vehicles and authorized vehicles.**

~~(14) East side of Park Avenue beginning at the intersection of the same with northerly side of Marginal Road and running northeasterly a distance of 100 feet.~~

~~(15) Northeast side of Rutherford Avenue between Ridge Road and Riverside Avenue.~~

~~(16) Southwest~~ **East** side of Mortimer Avenue between West Pierrepont Avenue and Riverview Avenue, **except for emergency vehicles and authorized vehicles.**

~~(18) Northeast side of Union Avenue between Eric Avenue and Chestnut Street.~~

~~(19) Southwest side of Union Avenue between Chestnut Street and Home Avenue.~~

~~(21) East side of The Terrace between East Passaic Avenue and Sylvan Street commencing at a point 165 from the northeasterly intersection of Sylvan Street and running southerly to its terminus with East Passaic Avenue.~~

~~(24) Southeast side of Jackson Avenue beginning at the intersection of the same with the northeast side of Union Avenue and running northeasterly a distance of 73 feet.~~

~~(25) Northwest side of Jackson Avenue beginning at the intersection of the same with the northeast side of Union Avenue and running northeasterly a distance of 69 feet.~~

~~(26) Northeast side of Union Avenue beginning at the intersection of the same with the northwest side of Jackson Avenue and running northwesterly a distance of 50 feet.~~

~~(27) Northwest side of Jackson Avenue beginning at the intersection of the same with the southwest side of Union Avenue and running southwesterly a distance of 86 feet.~~

~~(28) Southeast side of Jackson Avenue beginning at the intersection of the same with the northwest side of Union Avenue and running southwesterly a distance of 89 feet.~~

~~(32) Both sides of Erie Avenue between Jackson Avenue and Raymond Avenue.~~

~~(33) Easterly side of Erie Avenue from the intersection of the northeasterly side of Feronia Way with Erie Avenue for a distance of 400 feet running in a northerly direction.~~

~~(34) Westerly side of Erie Avenue between Feronia Way and Meadow Road.~~

~~(36) Northeasterly side of Union Avenue commencing at the intersection of the same with Riverside Avenue and running southeasterly a distance of 66 feet.~~

~~(37) Southwest side of Union Avenue commencing at the Union Avenue Bridge and running southeasterly a distance of 250 feet.~~

~~(39) Both sides of Jackson Avenue between Monona Avenue and Jackson Avenue crossing the Erie Lackawanna Railroad.~~

~~(40) West side of Preble Place for its entire length except between the hours of 7:00 a.m. Tuesdays until 7:00 a.m. Wednesdays.~~

~~(42) East side of Preble Place commencing 525 feet from the intersection of West Gouverneur Avenue and running southerly for a distance of ~~116~~ 135 feet.~~

~~(46) Westerly side of Meadow Road from the Northerly curbline of Highland Cross and thence running northerly to its terminus.~~

~~(47) Easterly side of Meadow Road from the westerly curbline of Route 17 to a point 100 feet northerly thereof.~~

~~(52) West side of Erie Avenue between Montross Avenue and Hasbrouck Place.~~

~~(53) East side of Erie Avenue in a northerly direction for a distance of 220 feet from the curbline of Montross Avenue overpass.~~

~~(54) East side of Erie Avenue in a southerly direction for a distance of 350 feet from the curbline of Montross Avenue overpass.~~

(60) Southwest side of Fairview Avenue commencing at a point being ~~151~~ **125** feet from the intersection of the southwest side of Fairview Avenue and the southwest side of Mortimer Avenue and running southeasterly along said southwest side of Fairview Avenue for a distance of ~~32~~ **75** feet.

(62) North side of West Pierrepont Avenue commencing at the northwesterly intersection of West Pierrepont Avenue and Mortimer Avenue and running westerly for a distance of 101 feet, **except emergency vehicles and authorized vehicles.**

~~(63) East side of Meadow Road for a distance of 350 feet commencing at the exit ramp from Route 17 southbound to Meadow Road and continuing northerly for the stated distance.~~

~~(65) West side of Erie Avenue commencing at a point 35 feet northerly from the westerly curb of Agnew Place and running northerly thereon a distance of 70 feet.~~

~~(67) Southwest side of Union Avenue commencing at a point 35 feet from the intersection of Erie Avenue and Union Avenue and running in a northerly direction for a distance of 23 feet.~~

~~(68) Northeasterly side of Union Avenue between Wells Place and Jackson Avenue.~~

~~(69) Both sides of Union Avenue between Ayer Place and Grove Street and between Home Avenue and Mortimer Avenue.~~

~~(70) Westerly side of Erie Avenue commencing 35 feet southerly from the intersection of Montross Avenue and continuing in a southerly direction for a distance of 155 feet.~~

~~(71) Northwesterly side of Ridge Road commencing 40 feet four inches northerly from the intersection of East Passaic Avenue and continuing northerly for a distance of 13 feet.~~

(72) Easterly **North** side of Donaldson Avenue commencing ~~151~~ feet from the intersection with Park Avenue, and running northerly for a distance of ~~27~~ feet, and on the north side of Donaldson Avenue commencing at a point 107 feet westerly from the intersection of Park Avenue, and running westerly for a distance of 116 feet.

(75) East side of Milton Court commencing at a point ~~106~~ **85** feet from the intersection of Elliott Place and Milton Court and running in a northerly direction for a distance of ~~25~~ **65** feet.

~~(76) Easterly side of Erie Avenue between Park Avenue (Station Square) and Union Avenue.~~

~~(77) Easterly side of Erie Avenue from Washington Avenue running northerly a distance of 150 feet.~~

~~(80) Along the north side of Rutherford Avenue between points 300 feet west and 280 feet east of Park Avenue's westerly and easterly curblines.~~

~~(81) East side of Agnew Place beginning at the northeast corner of Union Avenue and Agnew Place and running in a northerly direction for a distance of 99 feet between Union Avenue and West Erie Ave.~~

~~(88) Northeasterly side of Orient Way commencing 35 feet from the intersection with Service Road and running northerly for a distance of 21 feet.~~

~~(89) Both sides of Darwin Avenue commencing at a point 206 feet north of the intersection of Monona Avenue and running northerly to its terminus.~~

~~(99) North side of Riverside Avenue beginning at the intersection of the same with West Pierrepont Avenue and running southerly for a distance of 89 feet.~~

§ 126 - 2 Prohibited stopping or standing

A. No person shall stop or stand a vehicle at any time in the following designated areas of the following streets:

(2) Along both sides of Park Avenue ~~within 175 feet of Rutherford Avenue's northerly curblines~~ **commencing at the northerly curblines of Rutherford Avenue and running northerly for 485 feet on the west side of Park Avenue and 372 feet on the east side of Park Avenue.**

6) Along the ~~east~~ **west** side of Park Avenue from the southerly curblines of Franklin Place to a point ~~166~~ **160** feet southerly therefrom.

(7) Along the east side of Park Avenue from a point 45 feet south of the southerly ~~the~~ **northerly** curblines of Spring Dell to a point 110 feet ~~north of the northerly curblines of Spring Dell~~ the therefrom.

(8) Along the ~~south side~~ **Both sides** of Highland Cross from the easterly curblines on State Highway 17 ~~to the westerly curblines of Veterans Boulevard~~ **to its easterly terminus, except for emergency and authorized vehicles on the south side between Veterans Boulevard and its easterly terminus.**

~~(9) Along the north side of Pierrepont Avenue beginning at a point distant 366 feet northwesterly from the intersection of the same with the northwest side of Ridge Road to a point 12 feet northwesterly therefrom.~~

West side of Park Avenue commencing at a point 43 feet northerly from the intersection with The Terrace and running southerly a distance of 191 feet.

Add to code:

(13) North side of Borough Street commencing at the intersection with State Highway 17 and running easterly a distance of 370 feet.

(14) South sides of Borough Street between Veterans Boulevard and its easterly terminus

(15) Both sides of Altman Drive, also known as Howmedica way, commencing at a point 330 feet easterly from the intersection with Veterans Boulevard and running easterly to its easterly terminus.

(16) Both sides of Industrial Drive commencing at a point 290 feet westerly from the intersection with Veterans Boulevard and running westerly to its westerly terminus.

(17) Both sides of Veterans Boulevard commencing at the intersection with the North Service Road aka Thomas E Dunn Memorial Highway, running a distance on the east 50 feet and on the west side 95'.

(18) Along the south and east side of Veterans Boulevard commencing at southeasterly corner at the intersection with Veterans Boulevard and Altman Drive, aka Howmedica way and running a distance southerly 60 feet and westerly 50 feet.

(19) Northeasterly side of Orient Way commencing at the intersection with North Service Road aka Thomas E Dunn Memorial Highway and running northerly for a distance of 85 feet.

(20) Northeast side of Rutherford Avenue between Ridge Road and Riverside Avenue.

(21) Both sides of Jackson Avenue commencing at the northerly intersection with Union Avenue and running a distance northerly on the east side 90 feet and on the west side between Union Avenue and Monona Avenue.

(22) Both sides of Jackson Avenue between Monona Avenue and the East Rutherford Border.

(23) Both sides of Jackson Avenue commencing at the southerly intersection with Union Avenue and running a distance southerly on the west side 100 feet and on the east side 125 feet.

(24) Both sides of Union Avenue commencing at the westerly intersection with Jackson Avenue and running a distance westerly on the south side 265 feet and on the north side 160 feet.

(25) Both sides of Union Avenue on the south side between Jackson Avenue and Springfield Avenue and on the north side between Jackson Avenue and Wells Place.

(26) Both side of Meadow Road between East Erie Avenue and State Highway 17.

(27) Both sides of East Erie Avenue between Meadow Road and Orient Way, except for permit parking only spots designated by ordinance.

(28) Northeast side of West Erie Avenue between Park Avenue and Jackson, except for permit parking only spots designated by ordinance between Union Avenue and Chestnut Street.

(29) West side of West Erie Avenue commencing at a point 73 feet southerly from the intersection of Union Avenue and running southerly a distance of 250 feet.

(30) Both sides of West Erie Avenue between Vanderburg Avenue and Maple Avenue.

(31) Both sides of Riverside Avenue commencing at the southerly intersection of Rutherford Ave and running northerly a distance on the west side 630 feet and on the east side 580 feet.

(32) North side of Riverside Avenue beginning at the intersection of the same with West Pierrepont Avenue and running southerly for a distance of 89 feet.

(33) Southwest side of Union Avenue commencing at the Union Avenue Bridge and running southeasterly a distance of 250 feet.

(34) Northeasterly side of Union Avenue commencing at the intersection of the same with Riverside Avenue and running southeasterly a distance of 66 feet.

(35) Northeast side of Union Avenue commencing at a point 62 feet southeasterly from the intersection with Wells Place and running southeasterly a distance of 27 feet, except for emergency vehicles and authorized vehicles.

(36) Northeast side of Union Avenue between Ayer Place and Carmita Avenue.

(37) Southwest side of Union Avenue between Chestnut Street and Carmita Avenue.

(38) Both sides of Chestnut Street commencing at the intersection with south side of Union Avenue and running a distance on the west side 60 feet and on the east side 95 feet.

(39) Northeast side of Union Avenue between West Erie Avenue and Chestnut Street.

(40) West side of Park Avenue commencing at a point 43 feet northerly from the intersection with The Terrace and running southerly a distance of 191 feet.

§ 126 – 3 Fifteen-minute parking.

A. No vehicle shall be permitted to park for a period exceeding 15 minutes between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. daily, except Sundays, in the following designated areas of the following streets:

(1) From a point on the southeasterly curbline of Park Avenue, 35 feet northeasterly from the intersection of Donaldson Avenue and Park Avenue, distant thereon ~~212~~ 237 feet and running along the northeasterly curbline of Park Avenue a distance of ~~25~~ 50 feet.

(2) Southwest side of West Passaic Avenue beginning ~~35~~ 52 feet from the northwesterly terminus of the radius turn constituting the intersection of said southwest side of West Passaic Avenue with the northwest side of Park Avenue and running northwesterly a distance of ~~50~~ 22 feet.

(9) ~~Northwest~~ West side of Park Avenue commencing at a point ~~57~~ 39 feet north from the intersection of same with Addison Avenue and running northerly for a distance 23 feet.

(12) West side of Park Avenue commencing 80 feet northerly from the intersection of the same with Ames Avenue and running a distance of 22 feet.

~~(17) Northwesterly side of Park Avenue commencing at a point 80 feet northwesterly from the intersection of same with Addison Avenue and running northwesterly for a distance of 22 feet.~~

~~(19) Northerly side of Chestnut Street commencing at a point 50 feet easterly from the intersection of Chestnut Street and Union Avenue and running easterly for a distance of 22 feet.~~

~~(21) North side of Franklin Place commencing at a point 130 feet westerly from the westerly curbline of Park Avenue and running for a distance of 18 feet.~~

~~(23) Southwesterly side of West Passaic Avenue commencing at a point 35 feet from the intersection of West Passaic Avenue and Home Avenue and running easterly for a distance of 22 feet.~~

§ 126 - 4 Thirty-minute parking

~~A. No vehicle shall be permitted to park for a period exceeding 30 minutes between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., except Saturdays, Sundays and school holidays, in the following designated areas of the following streets:~~

~~(1) Southeasterly side of Mortimer Avenue beginning 35 feet from the intersection of Moretimer Avenue with the southwesterly side of Fairview Avenue and running southwesterly 115 feet.~~

~~(2) Orient Way, west side, commencing 35 feet from the intersection at Station Square and extending 278 feet southerly
[Added 7-26-2005 Or. No. 3084-05]~~

~~(3) Orient Way, west side, commencing 30 feet from the intersection with Glen Road and extending 131 feet southerly.
[Added 7-26-2005 by Ord. No. 3084-05]~~

~~(4) Orient Way, east side, commencing 146 feet from the intersection with Erie Avenue and extending 293 feet southerly.
[Added 7-26-2005 by Ord. No. 3084-05]~~

§ 126 - 5 Parking prohibited certain hours

~~A. No vehicle shall be permitted to park between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 9:00 a.m. and between the hours of 4:00 p.m. and 6:00 p.m., except Sundays and holidays, in the following designated areas of the following streets:~~

~~(1) Northwest side of Jackson Avenue beginning at a point distant 86 feet southwesterly from the intersection of the same with the southwest side of Union Avenue and running southwesterly to the intersection of said side of Jackson Avenue with the northeasterly side of Clark Avenue.~~

~~(2) Southeast side of Jackson Avenue beginning at a point distant 89 feet southwesterly from the intersection of the same with the southwest side of Union Avenue and running southwesterly to the intersection of said side of Jackson Avenue with the northeast side of Clark Avenue produced southeasterly to said southeast side of Jackson Avenue.~~

~~B. No vehicle shall be permitted to park between the hours of 11:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. in the following designated areas of the following streets:
[Added 5-16-1978 by Ord. No. 2227-78]~~

~~(1) Both sides of Lincoln Avenue between Park Avenue and Highland Cross.~~

~~(2) Both sides of Highland Cross between Lincoln Avenue and Park Avenue.~~

~~C. A. No vehicle shall be permitted to park, except in designated handicapped spaces, between the hours of 7:30 a.m. and 8:30 a.m. and between the hours of 1:30 p.m. and 3:30 p.m., on school days only, in the following designated areas of the following streets:~~

~~[Added 5-16-1978 by Ord. No. 2243-78; amended 10-1-1985 by Ord. No. 2417-85; 9-3-1997 by Ord. No. 2815-97]~~

~~(1) South side of Ames Avenue between Chestnut Street and Home Avenue.~~

~~D. No vehicle shall be permitted to park between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 9:00 a.m. and the hours of 4:00 p.m. and 7:00 p.m., except Saturdays, Sundays and holidays, in the following designated areas of the following streets:~~

~~[Added 12-5-1978 by Ord. No. 2243-78]~~

~~(1) Erie Avenue, easterly side, commencing at a point 35 feet northerly from the northerly curblineline of the railroad crossing at Park Avenue and running northerly thereon a distance of 188 feet.~~

~~E. No vehicle shall be permitted to park between the hours of 7:00 a.m. Tuesday and 7:00 a.m. Wednesday in the following designated areas of the following streets:~~

~~[Added 7-9-2013 by Ord. No. 3299-13]~~

~~(1) East side of Preble Place between West Gouverneur Avenue and its southern terminus. Editor's Note: Former Subsection E, added 10-1-1985 by Ord. No. 2417-85, was repealed 9-3-1997 by Ord. No. 2815-97.~~

~~F. No vehicle shall be permitted to park between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 11:00 a.m., except Saturdays, Sundays and holidays, in the following designated areas of the following streets:~~

~~[Added 7-5-1989 by Ord. No. 2541-89; amended 12-19-1989 by Ord. No. 2563-89]~~

~~(1) (Reserved)~~

~~Editor's Note: Former Subsection F (1), regarding Preble Place from Gouverneur Avenue to Stuyvesant Avenue, was repealed 7-26-2011 by Ord. No. 3233-11.~~

~~(2) Both sides of Stuyvesant Avenue between Marginal Road and West Gouverneur Avenue.~~

~~(3) Both sides of Edgewood Place beginning at the intersection of Stuyvesant Avenue and running in a northerly direction for a distance of 242 feet.~~

~~[Amended 6-6-1990 by Ord. No. 2572-90]~~

~~(4) Both sides of West Gouverneur Avenue between Park Avenue and Edgewood Place.~~

~~[Amended 4-17-1990 by Ord. No. 2569-90]~~

~~G. B. No vehicle shall be permitted to park between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m., except Saturdays, Sundays and school holidays, in the following designated areas of the following streets:~~

[Added 2-18-1992 by Ord. No. 2637-92; amended 2-20-2001 by Ord. No. 2959-01; 5-2-2006 by Ord. No. 3111-06; 8-26-2014 by Ord. No. 3334-14; 8-22-2016 by Ord. No. 3401-16]

(1) Pierrepont Avenue, southerly side, commencing at a point 35 feet from the intersection of the same with the southeast side of Lincoln Avenue and running easterly thereon a distance of 195 feet.

(2) Lincoln Avenue, easterly side, commencing at a point 39 feet southerly from the intersection of the same with the southeast side of Pierrepont Avenue and running southerly thereon a distance of 70 feet.

(3) Wood Street on the easterly side, commencing at a point 62 feet southerly from the intersection of Wood Street with the southeast side of Washington Avenue and running southerly thereon for a distance of 170 feet.

(4) Washington Avenue on the southerly side, commencing at a point 35 feet from the intersection of Washington Avenue with the southeast side of Wood Street and running easterly thereon for a distance of 106 feet.

(5) Montross Avenue on the westerly side, commencing at a point 53 feet northerly from the intersection of Montross Avenue with the northwest side of West Pierrepont Avenue and running northerly thereof for a distance of 304 feet, with the exception of the handicap parking space commencing 169 feet from West Pierrepont Avenue and running northerly for a distance of 24 feet.

(6) Vreeland Avenue on the southerly side, commencing at a point 60 feet from the intersection of Vreeland Avenue with the southwest side of Montross Avenue and running westerly thereon for a distance of 80 feet.

(7) Sylvan Street on the easterly side, commencing at a point 35 feet northerly from the intersection of Sylvan Street with the northeast side of Highland Cross and running northerly thereon for a distance of 106 feet.

(8) Highland Cross on the northerly side, commencing at a point 35 feet from the intersection of Highland Cross with the northeast side of Sylvan Street and running easterly thereon for a distance of 235 feet.

(9) East Van Ness Avenue on the northerly side, commencing at a point 35 feet from the intersection of East Van Ness Avenue with the northwest side of Wilson Avenue and running westerly thereon for a distance of 120 feet.

~~H. No vehicle shall be permitted to park between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 8:30 a.m., except Saturdays, Sundays and school holidays, in the following designated areas of the following streets:~~

~~[Added 11-1-1994 by Ord. No. 2717-94]~~

~~(1) Prospect Place, westerly side, commencing at the intersection of the same with Union Avenue and running southerly thereon a distance of 105 feet.~~

~~I. No vehicle shall be permitted to park, except in designated handicapped spaces, between the hours of 7:30 a.m. and 8:30 a.m. on school days only in the following designated areas of the following streets:~~

~~[Added 9-3-1997 by Ord. No. 2815-97]~~

~~(1) North side of Ames Avenue between Chestnut Street and Home Avenue.~~

~~§ 126 – 6 One-hour parking.~~

~~§ 126-6 One-hour parking.~~

~~[Amended 10-7-1975 by Ord. No. 2179-75; 12-16-1975 by Ord. No. 2182-75; 12-7-1976 by Ord. No. 2199-76; 12-6-1977 by Ord. No. 2218-77; 3-19-1996 by Ord. No. 2757-96]~~

~~A. Vehicles shall not park for a period exceeding one hour between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m., prevailing time, except Sundays and holidays, in the areas where parking is permitted on the following streets, avenues and roads:~~

~~(1) Union Avenue between Erie Avenue and Ayer Place.~~

~~(2) Park Avenue from East Park Place to East Newell Avenue.~~

~~(3) Ames Avenue between Chestnut Street and Kip Avenue.~~

~~(4) Northeast side of Donaldson Avenue beginning 35 feet from the intersection of Donaldson Avenue and Park Avenue for a distance of 186 feet northwesterly thereon from Park Avenue.~~

~~(5) Agnew Place between Erie Avenue and Union Avenue.~~

~~(6) Vanderburgh Avenue between Erie Avenue and Monona Avenue.~~

~~(7) Riverview Avenue between Park Avenue and Mortimer Avenue.~~

~~(8) West Passaic Avenue.~~

~~(9) Beech Street.~~

~~(a) Southeast side of Beech Street beginning at a point 35 feet from Union Avenue to Washington Avenue.~~

~~(b) Southwest side of Beech Street beginning at a point 50 feet from the intersection of Union Avenue to Washington Avenue.~~

~~§ 126 – 7 Two-hour parking.~~

~~A. Vehicles shall not park for a period exceeding two hours between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m., prevailing time, except Sundays and holidays; **nor shall any vehicle be allowed to be moved from parking space to parking space in an attempt to circumvent the time limits established** in the areas where parking is permitted in the following streets and avenues:~~

~~(1) Southeast side of Springfield Avenue beginning 50 feet from the intersection of Springfield Avenue with Union Avenue for a distance of 150 feet southwesterly along Springfield Avenue.~~

~~North side of Union Avenue between Ayer Place and Chestnut Street and the south side of Union Avenue between Chestnut and West Erie.~~

...

(3) Both sides of Ames Avenue between Chestnut Street and Kip Avenue.

(4) Both Sides of Chestnut Street between Ames Avenue and Union Avenue.

(5) West side of Agnew Place between Union Avenue and West Erie Avenue.

§ 126 – 8 Three-hour parking.

- A. Vehicles shall not park for a period exceeding three hours between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m., prevailing time, except Sundays and holidays; **nor shall any vehicle be allowed to be moved from parking space to parking space in an attempt to circumvent the time limits established** in the areas where parking is permitted in the following streets and avenues:

~~(3) East Passaic Avenue between Park Avenue and Ridge Road.~~

~~(4) Southwest side of Donaldson Avenue 185 feet from the intersection of Donaldson Avenue and Park Avenue to a point thereon distant from said point running northwesterly to Mortimer Avenue.~~

~~(5) Southeast side of Donaldson Avenue 221 feet from the intersection of Donaldson Avenue and Park Avenue to a point thereon distant from said point running northwesterly to Mortimer Avenue.~~

~~(10) Feronia Way between Erie Avenue and East Passaic Avenue.~~

(11) Chestnut Street between **Ames Union** Avenue and **West** Erie Avenue.

~~(16) Orient Way between Van Riper and Barrows Avenue.~~

~~(17) Santiago Avenue distant 200 feet south from the intersection of Santiago Avenue and Union Avenue to a point 35 north of the intersection of Santiago Avenue and Francisco Avenue.~~

~~(18) Van Riper Avenue between Orient Way and Mountain Way.~~

~~(19) Barrows Avenue in its entirety.~~

~~(20) Orient Way between Van Riper Avenue and Woodland Avenue on the northwest and Nevins Street on the southeast.~~

~~(21) Both sides of Van Riper Avenue between Orient and Feronia Way.~~

~~(22) Both sides of Sylvan Street between Barrows Avenue and Van Riper Avenue.~~

~~(23) Both sides of Van Riper Avenue between Ridge Road and Mountain Way.~~

~~(24) Both sides of Crane Avenue between Orient Way and Feronia Way.~~

~~(25) Both sides of Nevins Street between Orient Way and Feronia Way.~~

~~(26) Both sides of William Street between Orient Way and Feronia Way.~~

~~(27) West side of Orient Way commencing at a point 33 feet from the intersection of Orient Way and Summit Cross and running southerly for a distance of 44 feet.~~

~~(28) Agnew Place between Union Avenue and Erie Avenue in its entirety.~~

§ 126 - 9 Overnight parking prohibited

- A. No person or persons or firms or corporations shall park or cause to be parked any vehicle of any kind between the hours of 2:00 a.m. and 6:00 a.m., prevailing time, in the following streets and avenues:

(8) Both sides of Veterans Boulevard between Highland Cross and North Service Road aka Thomas Dunn Memorial Highway.

(9) Both sides of Borough Street between State Highway 17 and its easterly terminus.

(10) Both sides of Altman Drive, also known as Howmedica Way, between Veterans Boulevard and its easterly terminus.

(11) Both sides of Industrial Drive between Veterans Boulevard and it's westerly terminus.

§ 126 - 9.1 Commercial and specific vehicle restrictions

- A. No person or persons, firm or corporation shall park any vehicle using commercial license plates or having advertising affixed to its exterior surfaces or trailers on any streets for more than one hour within the limits of the Borough of Rutherford; except, however, those vehicles parked to provide services and effect delivery to same or as provided in § [126-9.2](#) of this chapter.

(1) No person or persons, firm or corporation shall park an omnibus, school bus (all types), school vehicle (all types) , taxi, limousine, commuter van, ambulance, recreational vehicle (RV) over 18 feet, camper vehicles and vehicles altered for camper over 18 feet, mobile home over 18 feet, any trailer coupled to a vehicle over 18 feet, any truck and or coupled trailer including but not limited to, fire truck, garbage truck, truck tractor, tow truck, road tractor, boom truck, , pole trailer, double trailer, farm trailer, semitrailer, any vehicle with more than two axles or dual rear wheels, any vehicle with overhead or side equipment racks, dump body, any vehicle using commercial license plates or having advertising affixed to its exterior surfaces or trailers or any combination thereof on any streets for more than one hour within the limits of the Borough of Rutherford; except, however, those vehicles parked to provide services and effect delivery to same or as provided in §126-9.2 of this chapter.

(2) No person or persons, firm or corporation at no time shall park any uncoupled trailer of any type on any streets within the limits of the Borough of Rutherford.

(3) Camping trailers, mobile homes or recreational vehicles in excess of 18 feet in length may be parked on a street of a residential district for 48 consecutive hours when said vehicle is being loaded or unloaded in anticipation of or following active use. Said vehicle shall be parked on that portion of the street immediately contiguous to the property of the vehicle's owner or operator.

§ 126 – 11 Parking during snow emergencies

A. Whenever snow has fallen and the accumulation is such that it covers the street or highway, an emergency shall exist, and no vehicle shall be parked on the following streets or highways or portions thereof:

(66) South side of Elliot Place between Wood street and Milton Court.

(67) West side of Milton court between Elliot Place and Fairview Avenue.

§ 126 - 14 Permit-only parking areas established.

A. Erie Park and Ride Commuter parking lot.

~~(2) A permit shall not be necessary for any vehicle parking in the Erie Park and Ride Commuter parking lot between the hours of 9:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m.~~

C. Kip Avenue parking lot

(5) Kip Avenue senior permits. Within the Kip Avenue parking lot, there shall be a designated permit-only parking area for permit holders from Rutherford Senior Manor (senior housing). These parking spaces shall be situated on the second level of the Kip Avenue Parking Lot ~~between columns A1 and F1, between columns A1 and A6, and between columns D3 and D5, comprising a total of 20 spaces. No more than 20 permits shall be issued and outstanding at any time for these designated spaces. as shown on the attached site plan which is made a part of this chapter.~~ **Vehicles displaying a valid Rutherford Senior Manor permit may only park in designated Rutherford Senior Manor parking spots and are not permitted to park in any other permit or reserved spot within the parking garage.**

~~(6) The Mayor and Council may from time to time suspend or alter the public's ability to purchase daily and/or monthly parking permits in the Borough of Rutherford under this section at their discretion, with the exception of the handicapped parking spaces noted in § 126-69B.~~

55 Kip Center permits. Within the Kip Avenue parking lot, there shall be a designated permit-only parking area for permit holders from 55 Kip Center.

These parking spaces shall be situated on the third level of the Kip Avenue Parking Lot as shown on the attached site plan which is made a part of this chapter. Vehicles displaying a valid 55 Kip Center permit may only park in designated 55 Kip Center parking spots and are not permitted to park in any other permit or reserved spot within the parking garage.

§ 126 - 21 Permit fees.

C. The fee for a permit for parking at the Kip Avenue parking lot shall be \$50 per month. There shall be no fee for the permit known as the "Rutherford Senior Manor permit" or "55 Kip Center".

§ 126 - 22 Permit-only parking areas regulated

It is hereby established that the following areas shall be designated as areas where parking shall be prohibited by all motor vehicles unless a permit to park has been secured before parking. The Mayor and Council may from time to time suspend or alter the public's ability to purchase daily and/or monthly parking permits in the Borough of Rutherford under this section at their discretion, with the exception of the handicapped parking spaces designated by ordinance. At the discretion of the Mayor and Council or the Rutherford Police Department, any permit parking area in whole or in sections may be suspended or closed at any time.

§ 126 - 24 Zones established.

A. The establishment of zones, to be known as "parking meter zones," in the following streets and parking lots is hereby authorized:

(2) ~~Ames Avenue, on both sides, from Park Avenue to Kip Avenue~~ **Chestnut Street.**

(10) ~~Public parking lot on the southeasterly side of Kip Avenue.~~ **Kip Garage Parking Lot located on the first level.**

(11) ~~Public parking lot on the southerly side of Ettrick Terrace.~~ **Southerly side of Ettrick Terrace.**

(12) ~~Donaldson Avenue beginning at a point formed by the intersection of the northwesterly curblineline of Park Avenue produced with the northeasterly curblineline of Donaldson Avenue produced, running thence northwesterly 221 feet along said northeasterly curblineline of Donaldson Avenue.~~ **Westerly side of Agnew Place between Union Avenue and West Erie Avenue**

~~(24) Northeast side of Union Avenue between Chestnut Street and Ayer Place. North side of Union Avenue between Chestnut Street and Ayer Place and the south side of Union Ave between Chestnut Street and West Erie Avenue.~~

(27) Public Park and Ride lot on the northerly side of West Erie Avenue, ~~and the 25 most westerly spaces shall be~~ **except those spots** designated as "Park and Ride permit holders only."

§ 126 - 29 Parking within markings required

C. The Police Department shall have lines or markings placed adjacent to each permit parking space for the purpose of designating the permit parking space for which said permit is to be used, and each vehicle parked adjacent to or next to any permit parking space shall park within the lines or markings so established. It shall be unlawful to park any vehicle across any such lines or markings.

§ 126 - 31 Depositing of coins.

When any vehicle shall be parked, **stopped or standing** in any space adjacent to a parking meter which is located in accordance with the provisions of this chapter, the operator of said vehicle shall, upon entering the said parking space, immediately deposit or cause to be deposited in such parking meter the coin or coins of the United States of America required for such parking, in accordance with directions for the same attached to said meter, and failure to deposit such coin or coins shall constitute a violation of this chapter.

§ 126 - 37 Parking meter charges.

Vehicles shall not park, **stop or stand** for a period exceeding the time limits established by this section between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m., prevailing time, except Sundays and holidays, in a parking space regulated by a parking meter; nor shall coins be deposited in parking meters beyond the period of legal parking time established **and nor shall allow any vehicle to be moved from parking space to parking space in an attempt to circumvent the time limits established** in the areas where parking is permitted on the below listed streets, avenues and roads, and the charge for parking a motor vehicle on said public streets, avenues and roads shall be at the following rates:

- A. Park Avenue (Station Square to Pierrepont Avenue); Station Square; Ames Avenue; Franklin Place (Park Avenue to Chestnut Street); Orient Way (Station Square to Glen Road); Glen Road; Ridge Road (Park Avenue to East Passaic Avenue); Sylvan Street (Spring Dell to The Terrace); The Terrace (Park Avenue to Sylvan Street); Highland Cross (Park Avenue to Lincoln Avenue); West End District (Union Avenue and Santiago Avenue); West Erie Avenue, south side (Union

Avenue to Agnew Place); **Union Avenue (West Erie Avenue to Ayer Place); and Agnew place (Union Avenue to West Erie Avenue).**

B. Orient Way (Glen Road to East Passaic Avenue); Spring Dell (Sylvan Street to Orient Way); **Etrick Terrace (Spring Dell to Orient Way).**

~~C. East Erie Avenue (east side from Hackensack Street extending 370 feet westerly)~~

~~(1) Fees on all meters shall be as follows: \$0.50 for each one hour of parking for a period of time not exceeding 12 hours.~~

~~(2) The parking of any vehicle in excess of 12 hours is hereby prohibited.~~

§ 126 - 39 Effective times for schedule of charges

~~B. The schedule of charges herein established for the parking of motor vehicles on a public street in a parking space regulated by a parking meter herein designated shall be in full force and effect during the hours of 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. every day, except Sundays and holidays:~~

~~(1) East Erie Avenue (east side from Hackensack Street to Feronia Way).~~

§ 126 - 41 Effective times for public parking lot rates.

A. ~~Etrick Terrace Lot and Kip Avenue parking garage facility:~~ between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. every day, except Sundays and holidays.

~~§ 126 - 50 Intersection closing designated.~~

~~A. The following street intersections are hereby closed:~~

~~(1) Sylvan Street at Glen Road.~~

~~(2) Sylvan Street at Spring Dell.~~

~~B. There shall be installed a traffic island at Glen Road and Park Avenue to expedite the movement of traffic.~~

~~C. Proper fencing and safeguards shall be installed for the safety of pedestrians.~~

§ 126 - 56 Loading zones designated.

A. The following locations are hereby designated as loading zones between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. weekdays:

~~(3) Beginning at a point on the northeasterly curblineline of Union Avenue distant 140 feet from the intersection of Santiago Avenue and running along said~~

~~northeasterly curbline of Union Avenue in a southeasterly direction for a distance of 50 feet.~~

- B. The following areas are hereby established and designated as loading zones and may be used by passenger vehicles or trucks for the sole purpose of loading or unloading passengers or materials between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 3:30 p.m., Monday through Friday, prevailing time, as follows:

~~(1) Southwest side of East Passaic Avenue, beginning at a point 50 feet northwest of the intersection of the northwesterly side of Ridge Road with East Passaic Avenue and running northwest along the southwest side of East Passaic Avenue a distance of 50 feet.~~

§ 126 – 58 Angle parking established.

- A. The establishment of zones, to be known as "angle parking zones," permitting the ninety-degree-angle parking of motor vehicles within delineated parking stall lines in the following streets is hereby authorized:

(1) The easterly side of Veteran's Boulevard commencing 62 feet from the intersection of Veteran's Boulevard and Altman Drive and continuing southerly for a distance of 563 feet, except in those areas where parking would otherwise be prohibited by state statute.

(2) Hastings Avenue commencing at a point on both sides of Hastings Avenue at 210' from the intersection with Darwin Avenue and running westerly to its terminus.

126-59 Repair of vehicles

No person shall repair any vehicle upon any street within the Borough of Rutherford except in the case of emergency.

§ 126 – 62 Alternate-side parking designated.

- C. No person shall park a vehicle between the hours listed below on Mondays, prevailing time, on the following streets:

(1) Hours: 8:00 a.m. and 11:00 a.m.

(k) West side of Feronia Way between East Pierrepont Avenue and Van Riper Avenue and its southerly terminus.

(hh) East side of Preble Place between West Gouverneur Avenue and its southerly terminus.

(2) Hours: 12:00 noon and 3:00 p.m.

~~(s) East side of Park Avenue between East Pierrepont Avenue and Highland Cross.~~

(x) East side of Riverside Avenue between West Pierrepont Avenue and ~~West Passaic Avenue~~ **Donaldson Avenue.**

(dd) East side of Jackson Avenue between Donaldson Avenue and West Passaic Avenue.

D. No person shall park a vehicle between the hours listed below on Tuesdays, prevailing time, on the following streets:

(1) Hours: 8:00 a.m. and 11:00 a.m.

~~(k) East side of Feronia Way between East Pierrepont Avenue and Van Riper Avenue.~~ **its southerly terminus.**

(hh) West side of Preble Place between West Gouverneur Avenue and its southerly terminus.

(oo) Entire length of Walter Court.

(2) 12:00 noon and 3:00 p.m.

~~(j) West side of Meadow Road between East Passaic Avenue and Highland Cross.~~

~~(s) West side of Park Avenue between East Pierrepont Avenue and Highland Cross.~~

(x) West side of Riverside Avenue between West Pierrepont Avenue and ~~West Passaic Avenue~~ **Donaldson Avenue.**

(dd) West side of Jackson Avenue between Donaldson Avenue and West Passaic Avenue.

E. No person shall park a vehicle between the hours listed on Thursdays, prevailing time, on the following streets:

(1) Hours: 8:00 a.m. and 11:00 a.m.

~~(a) West side of Meadow Road between East Passaic Avenue and Erie Avenue.~~

~~(b) South side of Erie Avenue between Meadow road and Station Square.~~

~~(c) North side of Fairview Avenue between Wood Street and Mortimer Avenue.~~

(q) South side of Alwyn Terrace between ~~Cata~~**Carmita** Avenue and Prospect Place.

(s) North side of Elliott Place between ~~Mortimer Avenue~~ **Wood Street** and Milton Court.

(t) ~~North side of Francisco Avenue between Jackson Avenue and Carmita Avenue.~~ **Entire length of Circle Lane.**

(y) East side of Grand Avenue between ~~Insley Avenue and Union Avenue.~~ **Union Avenue and its southerly terminus.**

(aa) North side of ~~En~~ **Insley** Avenue between ~~Grand~~ **Jackson** Avenue and Chestnut Street. **its westerly terminus.**

(bb) North side of Carneer Avenue between Jackson Avenue and ~~Darwin Avenue.~~ **its westerly terminus.**

(cc) North side of Hastings Avenue between Jackson Avenue and ~~its westerly terminus.~~ **and Darwin Avenue.**

(2) Hours: 12:00 noon and 3:00 p.m.

(z) East side of Darwin Avenue between Union Avenue and ~~Monona Avenue.~~ **its northerly terminus.**

(aa) North side of Erie Avenue between Grand Avenue and ~~Chestnut Street.~~ **Jackson Avenue.**

F. No person shall park a vehicle between the hours listed on Fridays, prevailing time, on the following streets:

(1) Hours: 8:00 a.m. and 11:00 a.m.

~~(a) East side of Meadow Road between Highland Cross and Erie Avenue.~~

~~(b) North side of Erie Avenue between Meadow Road and Station Square.~~

~~(c) South side of Fairview Avenue between Wood Street and Mortimer Avenue.~~

(s) South side of Elliott Place between ~~Mortimer Avenue~~ **Wood Street** and Milton Court.

(y) West side of Grand Avenue between ~~Insley Avenue and Union Avenue~~ **and its southerly terminus.**

(aa) South side of Insley Avenue between Jackson Avenue and ~~Grand Avenue.~~ **its westerly terminus.**

(bb) South side of Carner Avenue between Jackson Avenue and ~~Darwin Avenue.~~ **its westerly terminus.**

(cc) South side of Hastings Avenue between Jackson Avenue and ~~its westerly terminus.~~ **Darwin Avenue.**

(ee) Both sides of Hastings Avenue Between Darwin Avenue and its westerly terminus.

~~(2)~~ Hours: 12:00 noon and 3:00 p.m.

~~(b) West side of Ivy Place between Union Avenue and Washington Avenue.~~

~~(w) ——— West side of Jackson Avenue between Union Avenue and Erie Avenue.~~

(z) West side of Darwin Avenue between Union Avenue and ~~Monona Avenue.~~ **its northerly terminus.**

(aa) South side of Erie Avenue between Grand Avenue and ~~Maple Street.~~ **Jackson Avenue.**

G. No person shall park a vehicle between the hours listed on Wednesdays, prevailing time, on the following streets:

(1) 6:00 a.m. and 8:00 a.m.

(n) South side of Fairview Avenue between ~~Mortimer Avenue~~ **Wood Street** and Home Avenue.

(o) South side of Franklin Place between ~~Home Avenue and Kip Avenue.~~ **Chestnut Street and Park Avenue.**

~~(p) East side of Kip Avenue between Franklin Place and Ames Avenue.~~

(s) North side of Elliott Place between ~~Mortimer Avenue~~ **Wood Street** and Home Avenue.

(gg) South side of Erie Avenue between Maple Street and ~~Chestnut Street.~~ **Park Avenue, except permit parking spots designated by ordinance.**

(mm) South side of East Passaic Avenue between Meadow Road and its easterly terminus.

(nn) West side of Agnew Place between Union Avenue and West Erie Avenue.

H. No person shall park a vehicle between the hours listed on Fridays, prevailing time, on the following streets:

(1) 6:00 a.m. and 8:00 a.m.

(n) North side of Fairview Avenue between ~~Mortimer Avenue~~ **Wood Street** and Home Avenue.

(o) North side of ~~Fairview Avenue~~ **Franklin Place** between ~~Mortimer Home Avenue~~ and ~~Home Park Avenue~~.

(s) South side of Elliott Place between ~~Mortimer Avenue~~ **Wood Street** and Home Avenue.

(mm) North side of East Passaic Avenue between Meadow Road and its easterly terminus.

§ 126 – 68 Lane use reservations

B. The following lane locations are designated "bus lane use reservations," and all other traffic shall be prohibited.

(1) Northerly side of Station Square between Orient way and Park Avenue in front of the Rutherford Train Station.

(2) Southerly side of station Square between Park Avenue and Orient way, except for vehicles utilizing parking designated by borough ordinance.

§ 126 – 69 Designation of spaces.

Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 39:4-197.5, the following locations on public streets and municipally owned parking lots are hereby **restricted and** designated as ~~restricted~~-accessible parking spaces for use only by persons who have been issued special ~~handicapped~~ **"persons with a disability"** vehicle identification ~~cards or handicapped placard or~~ plates by the Division of Motor Vehicles:

B. Municipal lot spaces. Each ~~handicapped~~ accessible parking place shall be a minimum of 22 feet in length and 12 feet in width and shall be marked by signs indicating ~~handicapped parking space.~~ shall meet the requirements set forth by New Jersey Statues and Americans with Disabilities Act standards.

Area

Location of Spaces

~~Borough hall annex, Park Avenue~~ ——— ~~1 space next to exit of parking lot~~

Kip Avenue Municipal Access Parking Lot 5 parking spaces as shown on the to Ord. No. 2645-92, which is on file attached site plan which is made part in the office of the Borough Clerk. of this chapter.

- C. Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 39:4-197.6, the following locations on public streets are hereby designated as restricted parking zones to be used only by persons who have been issued special handicapped **“persons with a disability”** vehicle identification placards or plates and issued the required permit by the Borough of Rutherford. The locations listed herein are also exempt from § [126-62](#), Alternate-side parking designated.

~~§ 126 – 70 Lots open to public; designated spaces~~

~~A. Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40:48-2.46, the following locations on private parking yards that are open to the public or to which the public are invited are designated as handicapped parking spaces for use by persons who have been issued special identification cards or handicapped plates by the New Jersey Division of Motor Vehicles:~~

Property Location	Parking Space Designated
Clair’s Food Market, 310-314 Union Avenue	First two parking spaces located closest To Union Avenue on the easterly side of the entrance driveway

~~B. Each handicapped parking space shall be a minimum of 22 feet in length and 12 feet in width and shall be marked by signs indicating handicapped parking space.~~

~~Article XIX Semipublic and Private Roads, Streets and Driveways
[Added 10-1-1989 by Ord. No. 2544-89]~~

~~§ 126 – 71 National Community Bank~~

~~A. Applicability. The provisions of Subtitle 1, Title 39, of the Revised Statutes of New Jersey be and they are hereby made applicable to the semipublic and private driveway and parking lots within and leading to and from National Community Bank of New Jersey located at or adjacent to the property designated on the Borough of Rutherford Tax Map Block 75, Lots 8.01, 9, 10, 11.01 and 12.01, or parts thereof, in the Borough of Rutherford.~~

~~B. Parking restriction. No person shall park a vehicle in any area designated in Subsection A above unless transacting bank business or otherwise authorized by the owner. No person shall park a vehicle in any such area except where designated stalls are provided and between painted lines.~~

~~C. Stop intersection created. A stop intersection is established at the exit driveway onto Ames Avenue as shown on the attached site plan.[1]~~

~~[1] Editor's Note: The site plan attached to Ord. No. 2544-89 and on file in the Borough Clerk's office.~~

~~D. Handicap parking. The handicapped parking regulations are only those shown on the attached site plan.~~

~~E. Lane use. The lane use regulations are only those shown on the attached site plan and are a part of this chapter.~~

~~F. Traffic regulations. Any vehicle parked or standing in violation of Subsection B of this chapter or so as to obstruct or impede a normal flow of traffic, block entrance or exitways or pedestrian walkways or present in any way a safety or traffic hazard may be removed by towing the vehicle at the owner's or operator's expense.~~

~~G. Penalties. Any person violating Subsection B of this chapter shall, upon conviction, be punished by a fine of \$25.~~

~~§ 126-72. Meadows Office Complex.[1]
[Added 10-2-1990 by Ord. No. 2582-90]~~

~~A. Applicability. The provisions of Subtitle 1, Title 39, of the Revised Statutes of New Jersey be and they are hereby made applicable to the semipublic and private driveways and parking lots within and leading to Meadows Office Complex, 201 and 301, Route 17 North in the Borough of Rutherford.~~

~~B. Handicapped parking. Handicapped parking spaces are established as shown on the attached site plan and are a part of this chapter.[2]~~

~~[2] Editor's Note: The site plan is attached to Ord. No. 2582-90 and on file in the Borough Clerk's office.~~

~~[1] Editor's Note: See also Ch. 66A, Parking Yards and Places.~~

ATTEST:

BOROUGH OF RUTHERFORD

Margaret M. Scanlon

Joseph DeSalvo Jr.

Margaret M. Scanlon, Borough Clerk

Joseph DeSalvo Jr., Mayor

I hereby certify the foregoing to be a true copy of an ordinance adopted by the Mayor and Council at a meeting held on May 28, 2019.

Margaret M. Scanlon
Margaret M. Scanlon, Borough Clerk